
 
 

16720 SE 271st Street, Suite 100 • Covington, WA 98042 • (253) 480-2400 • Fax: (253) 480-2401 
 

The City of Covington is a destination community where citizens, businesses and civic leaders collaborate  
to preserve and foster a strong sense of unity. 

 
PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA 

October 6 2016 
6:30 PM 

CALL TO ORDER 
 
ROLL CALL 
Chair Bill Judd, Vice Chair Paul Max, Chele Dimmett, Jennifer Gilbert-Smith, Jonathan Ingram,      
Jim Langehough, & Alex White 
  
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
APPROVAL OF CONSENT AGENDA  
 

1. Minutes from September 1, 2016  
 
CITIZEN COMMENTS - Note:  The Citizen Comment period is to provide the opportunity for members of the audience to address the 
Commission on items either not on the agenda or not listed as a Public Hearing.  The Chair will open this portion of the meeting and ask for a 
show of hands of those persons wishing to address the Commission.  When recognized, please approach the podium, give your name and city of 
residence, and state the matter of your interest.  If your interest is an Agenda Item, the Chair may suggest that your comments wait until that 
time.  Citizen comments will be limited to four minutes for Citizen Comments and four minutes for Unfinished Business.  If you require more than 
the allotted time, your item will be placed on the next agenda.  If you anticipate, in advance, your comments taking longer than the allotted time, 
you are encouraged to contact the Planning Department ten days in advance of the meeting so that your item may be placed on the next available 
agenda. 
 
UNFINISHED BUSINESS – No Action Required 
 

2. Status & Review on Interim Sign Code Revisions (Supreme Court Decision: Reed v. 
Town of Gilbert) 

 
PUBLIC HEARING – Action Required   
 

3. Public Hearing on Amendments to CMC 16.10 State Environmental Policy Act policies 
and procedures, CMC 14.30 Permit Decision Types and CMC 14.45 Appeal 
Procedures. 

4. Public Hearing on Amendments to Repeal CMC 18.100 Property Specific 
Development Standards/Special Overlay Districts 

 
NEW BUSINESS – No Action Required 
 
 
 
 
 



ATTENDANCE VOTE 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: (Same rules apply as stated in the 1st CITIZEN COMMENTS)  
 
COMMENTS AND COMMUNICATIONS OF COMMISSIONERS AND STAFF  
 
ADJOURN 

 
Any person requiring a disability accommodation should contact the City at least 24 hours in advance.   

For TDD relay service please use the state’s toll-free relay service (800) 833-6384 and ask the operator to dial (253) 480-2400 
Web Page:  www.covingtonwa.gov 



CITY OF COVINGTON 
Planning Commission Minutes 

 
September 1, 2016    City Hall Council Chambers 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
Vice Chair Max called the regular meeting of the Planning Commission to order at 
6:39 p.m. 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT 
Chele Dimmett, Jennifer Gilbert-Smith, Jim Langehough, Paul Max and Alex 
White   
 
MEMBERS ABSENT – Bill Judd 
 
STAFF PRESENT 
Brian Bykonen, Associate Planner and Code Enforcement Officer 
Richard Hart, Community Development Director 
Kelly Thompson, Planning Commission Secretary 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES AND AGENDA 
 
 1. Commissioner White moved and Commissioner Gilbert–Smith 

seconded to approve the May 19, 2016 minutes and agenda. 
Motion carried 5-0. 

 
CITIZEN COMMENTS - None 
 
UNFINISHED BUSINESS  
 

2. Status & Review on Sign Code Revisions (Supreme Court 
Decision: Reed v. Gilbert) 

 
Community Development Director, Richard Hart reviewed the Draft Temporary 
Sign Code in the Planning Commission Agenda Packet. The proposed regulations 
require permits for only banner signs and signs placed in public parks, trails, 
open space and public rights-of-way. Signs contain either a commercial or non-
commercial message. Mr. Hart reviewed the most significant changes to the 
Draft Temporary Sign Code and opened the discussion for questions.  
 
Vice Chair Max asked about the maximum sign height of 6’ and maximum size of 
12 square feet under Section 18.55.270(6)(d)(ii). Associate Planner and Code 
Enforcement Officer, Brian Bykonen, shared that holiday decorations are now 
being regulated as signs. Commissioner White and Commissioner Gilbert-Smith 

Planning Commission October 6, 2016 
Page1 of 50

Agenda Item 1



shared that they felt that size was small for a holiday decoration. Mr. Bykonen 
shared that any other non-commercial sign is regulated by that size as well.  
 
The record is noted to show that Commissioner Dimmett arrived at 6:50pm. 
 
Commissioner Dimmett asked about how a flag is regulated. Mr. Hart said that 
the height and size regulation shall not apply to a flag placed on a flag pole 
according to Section 18.55.270(6)(d)(iii). It is viewed as a permanent sign with a 
temporary message that can change by raising, lowering or adding a flag.  
 
Commissioner Gilbert-Smith asked about holiday lights. Mr. Bykonen shared that 
staff has discussed this and they could propose that a light could remain on if it 
is under a certain amount of illuminants. Mr. Hart reminded the Planning 
Commission that the enforcement of these regulations is handled only on the 
basis of a complaint.  
 
Staff plans to take the Draft Temporary Sign Regulations to the City Council for 
approval on an interim basis in October. Discussion and public outreach will 
continue before the Planning Commission will make a recommendation to the 
City Council for permanent regulations sometime next year.   
  
PUBLIC HEARING - None 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 

3. Discuss Council Decision on Impact Fee Deferral Program 
 
Mr. Hart shared that state law has required that cities adopt an impact fee 
deferral program to defer impact fees on new residential development by 
September 1, 2016. The state law also allowed the cities to cap the number of 
homes that could defer the impact fees to 20 units per year, per developer.  
 

4. Discuss Proposed Code Amendment to Delete Special Overlay 
Districts 

 
Several references to Covington Municipal Code 18.100 related to Property 
Specific Development Standards/Special District Overlays are no longer 
necessary and are proposed to be repealed.  
 

5. Discuss Proposed Code Amendment to SEPA Rules 
 
Under the city’s current environmental review procedure, it was noted that the 
City Council makes legislative decisions but the appeal procedures are unclear. A 

Planning Commission October 6, 2016 
Page2 of 50

Agenda Item 1



summary of proposed amendments are listed within the Agenda Item 5 
memorandum from the city’s consultant, Lisa Grueter at Berk Consulting. 

 
ATTENDANCE VOTE  
 
 Commissioner Gilbert-Smith moved and Commissioner White 

seconded to excuse the absence of Chair Judd. Motion carried  
5-0. 

 
PUBLIC COMMENTS - None 
 
COMMENTS AND COMMUNICATIONS FROM STAFF  
 
No comments.  
 
 
ADJOURN  
 
The September 1, 2016 Planning Commission Meeting adjourned at 7:24 p.m. 
 
Respectfully submitted,  
 

 
_____________________________________________ 

    Kelly Thompson, Planning Commission Secretary 

Planning Commission October 6, 2016 
Page3 of 50

Agenda Item 1



Planning Commission October 6, 2016 
Page4 of 50



 

 

City of Covington 
16720 SE 271st St. Suite 100 
Covington, WA 98042 
 
City Hall – 253.480.2400 
www.covingtonwa.gov 
 

Memo 
To:   Planning Commission   

From:   Richard Hart, Community Development Director 
   Brian Bykonen, Associate Planner/Code Enforcement Officer 
                Sara Springer, City Attorney  
Date:   October 6, 2016 

 
Re:   Review and Discussion of Working Draft of Proposed Interim Sign Code Revisions CMC 18.55 

Background 
City staff has been working on the proposed revisions to our sign code for about 18 months.  In 2015, 
the US Supreme Court issued a decision in Reed v. Town of Gilbert, a suburban city in the Phoenix, 
Arizona metropolitan area, that has provided new guidance for all cities and counties across the 
country.  At question is the major issue of content neutrality of local jurisdiction’s sign regulations.  
The city staff has held several study sessions with the city council to develop the goals, objectives, 
and purpose of new sign regulations, which is an important step required by the Supreme Court 
decision to lay the framework for content neutral sign regulations.  City staff has also held several 
discussion sessions with the planning commission to review progress on the proposed sign code 
revisions.  At this point city staff has concluded it is best to adopt interim sign code regulations that 
are content neutral and address the major points of temporary signs, as they were the major issue 
involved with the Supreme Court decision of Reed v. Gilbert.          
 
Process for Interim Regulations 
City staff has now chosen to follow an approach of adopting interim sign regulations for six months 
for both temporary signs and permanent signs.  The major focus of the interim regulations is for 
temporary signs.  The interim regulation process will involve a public hearing before the city council 
on October 25, 2016.  During the six months of interim regulations, staff will conduct an extensive 
public outreach program with planning commission participation to involve a variety on interest 
groups, provide education on the proposed regulations and listen to feedback on the specific 
numerical provisions for governing signs.  After that task, the planning commission will hold their 
required public hearing on the permanent sign regulations and make their final recommendation to 
the city council in 2017.   
 
Discussion of Working Draft for Interim Sign Regulations 
The accompanying draft of the proposed interim sign code regulations before you this evening is a 
partially completed working draft, which is provided for general reference and discussion only.  The 
intent of tonight’s meeting is to outline the structure of the proposed interim regulations, discuss 
process, and answer any questions the planning commission might have. 

Planning Commission October 6, 2016 
Page5 of 50

Agenda Item 2



Planning Commission October 6, 2016 
Page6 of 50



 

 

City of Covington 
16720 SE 271st St. Suite 100 
Covington, WA 98042 
 
City Hall – 253.480.2400 
www.covingtonwa.gov 
 

Memo 
To:   Planning Commission   

From:   Ann Mueller, Senior Planner 
   Richard Hart, Community Development Director 
 
Date:  September 30, 2016 

 
Re:  Public Hearing on Amendments to CMC 16.10 State Environmental Policy Act policies and procedures, 

CMC 14.30 Permit Decision Types and CMC 14.45 Appeal Procedures. 

Background 
CMC Chapter 16.10 State Environmental Policy Act contains the city’s SEPA procedures and policies 
which are consistent with the requirements of RCW 43.21C‐ the State Environmental Policy Act 
(SEPA) and implementing rules (WAC 197‐11).  However, staff and our consultant, BERK, have 
previously identified some unclear procedures for the review and potential appeal of environmental 
determinations.  Specifically, in additional language and clarification is being proposed related to 
processing appeals in the case of legislative proposals (e.g. plans, codes and area‐wide rezones) that 
are considered by the Planning Commission with a final decision by the City Council. As written the 
city’s rules do not clearly state what items under SEPA can be appealed administratively.  
Additionally, staff is proposing amendments to CMC 14.30 Permit Decision Types related to the 
timing of EIS review by the Planning Commission for nonproject actions.  Furthermore, some out of 
date references to SEPA state laws and rules are being corrected.  
 
Summary of Proposed Amendments  

 Proposed code amendments (Attachment A) would clarify SEPA appeal procedures for legislative matters.  

o Legislative matters are policy choices typically brought before the Planning Commission for 

recommendation and always subject to City Council decisions for action or no action.  

o Currently, city code indicates that appeals should be heard by the decision‐making body on the action. 

Therefore, the City Council would hear SEPA appeals associated with legislative actions.  

o Typically, the underlying action would need to be appealed in addition to the SEPA determination. This 

is problematic since the City Council would have to make its decision first and then be the body to hear 

an appeal. 

o In any case, City Council decisions regarding the Comprehensive Plan or development regulations are 

appealable to the Growth Management Hearings Board, including associated SEPA determinations. 

This is stated appropriately in the City’s code. 

o It is recommended that administrative appeal opportunities be retained for project permits but 

excluded for legislative matters since there are appeal opportunities to the Growth Management 

Hearings Board. 

Planning Commission October 6, 2016 
Page7 of 50

Agenda Item 3 



 

 Amendments would allow for Draft Environmental Impact Statements (Draft EISs) to go to the Planning 

Commission instead of the Final EIS. This would allow the comment period to overlap the Planning 

Commission hearing process, and offer the Planning Commission a greater role in shaping the preferred 

alternative to be included in a Final EIS. It would create more flexibility in the overall legislative review 

schedule. 

 Washington Administrative Code (WAC) 197‐11 rules are included by reference throughout the City’s code. 

Several changes to SEPA (RCW 43.21C) in 2012 have not been carried forward into implementing rules in 

WAC 197‐11; these SEPA law references should be included in the City’s SEPA procedures to ensure that 

noticing and other technical procedures are followed. Proposed amendments add references to relatively 

newer RCW provisions. 

 Some cross references to statutes and rules are incorrect and would be amended. 

 
 
A 60‐day notice of the proposed change to the Zoning Code was sent to the Washington State Department of 
Commerce on August 9, 2016.  On September 16, 2016, public notice of this proposed code amendment was 
published in the Covington Reporter, placed on the City website, and posted at City Hall.   
 
PUBLIC HEARING 
The Planning Commission will hold a public hearing on the proposal to amend CMC 16.10 State Environmental 
Policy Act rules, CMC 14.30 Permit Decision Types and CMC 14.45 Appeal Procedures at its October 6, 2016 
regularly scheduled meeting.  At the public hearing the Planning Commission will hear any public testimony 
and then discuss the proposed code amendments. After the Planning Commission discussion, you may direct 
staff to bring back items for further clarification and modification, make a final recommendation to the City 
Council, or continue review and discussion at a future meeting.  
 
Applicable Decision Criteria for Review of Development Regulation Amendments 
Following is the criteria (in italics) that the Planning Commission must use to determine if they will recommend 
the proposed code amendments to the City Council for their final review and decision.  
 
(1) The proposed amendment is consistent with the goals, objectives, and policies of the comprehensive plan; 
Staff Findings: The proposed amendments to amend CMC 16.10 State Environmental Policy Act rules, CMC 
14.30 Permit Decision Types regulations and CMC 14.45 Appeal Procedures are consistent with the goals, 
objectives and policies of Covington’s Comprehensive Plan. 
 
(2) The proposed amendment is consistent with the scope and purpose of the City’s zoning ordinances and the 
description and purpose of the zone classification applied for; 
Staff Findings: The proposed amendments to CMC 16.10 State Environmental Policy Act rules, CMC 14.30 
Permit Decision Types regulations and CMC 14.45 Appeal Procedures are not‐site specific and apply across all 
zones of the City.   
 
(3) Circumstances have changed substantially since the establishment of the current zoning map or district to 
warrant the proposed amendment; 
Staff Findings:  N/A. The proposed amendments will not affect the current zoning map or zoning district 
designations.  
 
(4) The proposed zoning is consistent and compatible with the uses and zoning of surrounding property; 
Staff Findings:  N/A. The proposed amendments do not affect the existing zoning of land in the City of 
Covington. 

Planning Commission October 6, 2016 
Page8 of 50

Agenda Item 3 



 

 
(5) The property that is the subject of the amendment is suited for the uses allowed in the proposed zoning 
classification; 
Staff Findings:  N/A. The proposed amendments are not site‐specific.   
 
(6) The amendment is in compliance with the three‐year limitation rule as specified in CMC 14.27.030(3); and 
Staff Findings:  Amendments to CMC 16.10 State Environmental Policy Act rules and CMC 14.30 Permit 
Decision Types regulations have not been proposed or subject to review by the City in the past three years.  
 
(7) Adequate public services could be made available to serve the full range of proposed uses in that zone. 
Staff Findings:  N/A. The proposed amendments will not change the zoning of any property in the City and will 
not create any increase demand for public services.  
 
Recommendation 
Recommended motion:  Move to recommend to the City Council that they approve the proposed amendments 
to CMC 16.10 State Environmental Policy Act procedures and policies, CMC 14.30 Permit Decision Types 
regulations and CMC 14.45 Appeal Procedures. 
 
Alternative motion:  Move to continue the Planning Commission’s discussion and final recommendation to a 
future meeting date to allow staff to make recommended modifications for Planning Commission review.  
 

Planning Commission October 6, 2016 
Page9 of 50

Agenda Item 3 



Planning Commission October 6, 2016 
Page10 of 50



    1 

   

Chapter 16.10 
STATE ENVIRONMENTAL POLICY ACT 

Sections: 
16.10.010    Authority. 
16.10.020    General requirements. 
16.10.030    Additional definitions. 
16.10.040    Designation of responsible official. 
16.10.050    Lead agency determination and responsibilities. 
16.10.060    Transfer of lead agency status to a State agency. 
16.10.070    Additional timing considerations. 
16.10.080    Categorical exemptions (threshold determinations). 
16.10.090    Categorical exemptions (flexible thresholds). 
16.10.100    Use of exemptions. 
16.10.110    Environmental checklist. 
16.10.120    Mitigated determination of nonsignificance. 
16.10.130    Environmental impact statement (EIS). 
16.10.140    Preparation of EIS (additional considerations). 
16.10.150    Commenting. 
16.10.160    Public notice. 
16.10.170    Designation of official to perform consulted agency responsibilities for the City. 
16.10.180    Using existing environmental documents. 
16.10.190    SEPA and agency decisions. 
16.10.200    Substantive authority. 
16.10.210    Appeals. 
16.10.220    Notice – Statute of limitations. 
16.10.230    Definitions. 
16.10.240    Categorical exemptions. 
16.10.250    Agency compliance. 
16.10.260    Fees. 
16.10.270    Forms. 

16.10.010 Authority. 

The City adopts this chapter under the State Environmental Policy Act (SEPA), RCW43.21C.120 and the 

SEPA rules, WAC 197-11-904. This chapter contains the City’s SEPA procedures and policies. The 

SEPA rules, Chapter 197-11 WAC, must be used in conjunction with this chapter. (Ord. 102-98 § 2) 

16.10.020 General requirements. 

This section contains the basic requirements that apply to the SEPA process. The City adopts the 

following provisions of the Washington Administrative Code by reference, as now existing or as hereafter 

amended: 

WAC 
197-11-040     Definitions 
197-11-050     Lead agency 
197-11-055     Timing of the SEPA process 
197-11-060     Content of environmental review 
197-11-070     Limitations on actions during SEPA process 
197-11-080     Incomplete or unavailable information 

Planning Commission October 6, 2016 
Page11 of 50

Agenda Item 3 Attachment 



PROPOSED COVINGTON SEPA RULE AMENDMENTS 

    2 

197-11-090     Supporting documents 
197-11-100     Information required of applicants 
197-11-158     GMA project review – Reliance of existing plans and regulations 
197-11-210     SEPA/GMA integration 
197-11-220     SEPA/GMA definitions 
197-11-228     Overall SEPA/GMA integration procedures 
197-11-229     Timing of an integrated SEPA/GMA process 
197-11-232     SEPA/GMA integration procedures for preliminary planning, environmental analysis, and 

expanded scoping 
197-11-235     Documents 
197-11-238     Monitoring 
197-11-250     SEPA/Model Toxics Control Act (MTCA) integration 
197-11-253     SEPA/lead agency for MTCA actions 
197-11-256     Preliminary evaluation 
197-11-259     Determination of nonsignificance for MTCA remedial actions 
197-11-262     Determination of significance and EIS for MTCA remedial actions 
197-11-265     Early scoping for MTCA remedial actions 
197-11-268     MTCA interim actions 
(Ord. 102-98 § 2) 

16.10.030 Additional definitions. 

In addition to the definitions contained within WAC 197-11-700 through 197-11-799and 197-11-220, when 

used in this chapter, the following terms have the following meanings, unless the context indicates 

otherwise: 

(1) “Department” means any unit of the City established by ordinance, rule, or order. 

(2) “SEPA rules” means Chapter 197-11 WAC adopted by the Department of Ecology. 

(3) “Ordinance” means the ordinance, resolution, or other procedure used by the City to adopt regulatory 

requirements. 

(4) “Early notice” means the City’s response to an applicant stating whether it considers issuance of a 

determination of significance likely for the applicant’s proposal (mitigated determination of nonsignificance 

(MDNS) procedures). (Ord. 102-98 § 2) 

16.10.040 Designation of responsible official. 

(1) For those proposals for which the City is the lead agency, the responsible official will be the City 

Manager, or the City Manager’s designee. 

(2) For all proposals for which the City is the lead agency, the responsible official will make the threshold 

determination, supervise scoping and preparation of any required environmental impact statement (EIS), 

and perform any other functions assigned to the lead agency or responsible official by those sections of 

the SEPA rules that are listed in this chapter. 

(3) The City will retain all documents required by the SEPA rules and make them available in accord with 

Chapter 42.17 RCW. (Ord. 102-98 § 2) 

Planning Commission October 6, 2016 
Page12 of 50

Agenda Item 3 Attachment 



PROPOSED COVINGTON SEPA RULE AMENDMENTS 

    3 

16.10.050 Lead agency determination and responsibilities. 

(1) Any Department within the City receiving an application for or initiating a proposal that involves a 

nonexempt action will forward the environmental documents to the responsible official for a determination 

of lead agency under WAC 197-11-050, 197-11-253, and 197-11-922 through 197-11-940, unless the 

lead agency has been previously determined or the responsible official is aware that another agency is in 

the process of determining the lead agency. 

(2) When the City is the lead agency for a proposal, the responsible official will supervise compliance with 

the threshold determination requirements and, if an EIS is necessary, will supervise preparation of the 

EIS. 

(3) When the City is not the lead agency for a proposal, all Departments will use and consider, as 

appropriate, either the DNS or the final EIS of the lead agency in making decision on the proposal. No 

Department will prepare or require preparation of a DNS or EIS in addition to that prepared by the lead 

agency, unless required under WAC197-11-600. In some cases, the City may conduct supplemental 

environmental review under WAC 197-11-600. 

(4) If the City receives a lead agency determination made by another agency that appears inconsistent 

with the criteria of WAC 197-11-253 or 197-11-922 through 197-11-940, it may object to the 

determination. Any objection must be made to the agency originally making the determination and 

resolved within 15 days of receipt of the determination, or the City will petition the Department of Ecology 

for a lead agency determination under WAC 197-11-946 within the 15-day time period. The responsible 

official may initiate any such petition after approval of the City Council. 

(5) The responsible official is authorized to make agreements as to the lead agency status of shared lead 

agency duties for a proposal under WAC 197-11-942 and 197-11-944; provided, that the responsible 

official and any Department that will incur responsibilities as a result of such agreement approve the 

agreement. 

(6) When making a lead agency determination for a private project, the responsible official will require 

sufficient information from the applicant to identify which other agencies have jurisdiction over the 

proposal. 

(7) When the City is the lead agency for an MTCA remedial action, the Department of Ecology will be 

provided an opportunity under WAC 197-11-253(5) to review the environmental documents prior to public 

notice being provided. If the SEPA and MTCA documents are issued together with one public comment 

period under WAC 197-11-253(6), the City will decide jointly with the Department of Ecology who 

receives the comment letters and how copies of the comment letters will be distributed to the other 

agency. (Ord. 102-98 § 2) 

Planning Commission October 6, 2016 
Page13 of 50

Agenda Item 3 Attachment 



PROPOSED COVINGTON SEPA RULE AMENDMENTS 

    4 

16.10.060 Transfer of lead agency status to a State agency. 

For any proposal for a private project where the City would be the lead agency and for which one or more 

State agencies have jurisdiction, the City’s responsible official may elect to transfer the lead agency 

duties to a State agency. The State agency with jurisdiction appearing first on the priority listing in 

WAC 197-11-936 shall be the lead agency and the City will be an agency with jurisdiction. To transfer 

lead agency duties, the City’s responsible official must transmit a notice of the transfer together with any 

relevant information available on the proposal to the appropriate State agency with jurisdiction. The 

responsible official of the City will also give notice of the transfer to the private applicant and any other 

agencies with jurisdiction over the proposal. (Ord. 102-98 § 2) 

16.10.070 Additional timing considerations. 

A. For nonexempt proposals, the determination of nonsignificance or in the case where an EIS has been 

required, a final environmental impact statement (FEIS) for the proposal will accompany the staff 

recommendation, if any, in a quasi-judicial proceeding on a non-exempt application by the Hearing 

Examinerto any appropriate advisory body, such as the Planning Commission. (Ord. 102-98 § 2) 

B. For nonexempt legislative proposals, the DNS or draft EIS or other threshold determination and SEPA 

environmental documentation for the proposal shall accompany the City’s staff recommendation to the 

appropriate advisory body, such as the Planning Commission. 

16.10.080 Categorical exemptions (threshold determinations). 

This section contains the rules for deciding whether a proposal has a “probable significant, adverse 

environmental impact” requiring an environmental impact statement (EIS) to be prepared. This section 

also contains rules for evaluating the impacts of proposals not requiring an EIS. 

The City adopts the following provisions of the Washington Administrative Code by reference, as now 

existing or as hereafter amended: 

WAC 
197-11-300     Purpose 
197-11-305     Categorical exemptions 
197-11-310     Threshold determination required 
197-11-315     Environmental checklist 
197-11-330     Threshold determination process 
197-11-335     Additional information 
197-11-340     Determination of nonsignificance (DNS) 
197-11-350     Mitigated DNS 
197-11-355     Optional DNS process 
197-11-360     Determination of significance (DS) – Initiation of scoping 
197-11-390     Effect of threshold determination 

The city adopts the following section of the Revised Code of Washington by reference, as supplemented 

in this chapter: 

RCW 

Planning Commission October 6, 2016 
Page14 of 50

Agenda Item 3 Attachment 



PROPOSED COVINGTON SEPA RULE AMENDMENTS 

    5 

43.21C.410 Battery charging and exchange station installation 

(Ord. 19-11 § 1 (Exh. 1); Ord. 102-98 § 2) 

16.10.090 Categorical exemptions (flexible thresholds). 

(1) The City establishes the following exempt levels for minor new construction under WAC 197-11-

800(1)(bc) and (d) based on local conditions: 

(a) The construction or location of any single-family residential structures of nine or fewer dwelling 

units; 

(b) The construction or location of any multifamily residential structures of 60 or fewer units located 

within the mixed housing/office (MHO), mixed commercial (MC), and general commercial (GC) 

downtown zoning districts and the R-18 multifamily zone; 

(c) The construction of a barn, loafing shed, farm equipment storage building, produce storage or 

packing structure, or similar agricultural structure, covering 30,000 square feet, and to be used only 

by the property owner or his or her agent in the conduct of farming the property. This exemption 

shall not apply to feed lots; 

(d) The construction of an office, school, commercial, recreational, service or storage building with 

12,000 square feet of gross floor area, and with associated parking facilities designated for 40 

automobiles; 

(e) The construction of a parking lot designated for 40 automobiles; 

(f) Any landfill or excavation of 500 cubic yards throughout the total lifetime of the fill or excavation; 

and any fill or excavation classified as a Class I, II, or III forest practice under RCW 76.09.050 or 

regulations thereunder; provided, that the categorical exemption threshold shall be 250 cubic yards 

for any fill or excavation that occurs on a site that contains critical areas as defined in 

Chapter 18.65 CMC and the Shoreline Master Program, as amended. 

(2) The City adopts the following provisions of the Revised Code of Washington by reference, as now 

existing or as hereafter amended regarding exemptions for nonproject proposals: 

RCW 43.21C.450 Nonproject actions exempt from requirements of chapter. 

(32) Whenever the City establishes new exempt levels under this section, it will send them to the 

Department of Ecology, Headquarters Office, Olympia, Washington 98504, pursuant to WAC 197-11-

800(1)(c). (Ord. 08-13 § 2 (Exh. A); Ord. 102-98 § 2) 

Planning Commission October 6, 2016 
Page15 of 50

Agenda Item 3 Attachment 



PROPOSED COVINGTON SEPA RULE AMENDMENTS 

    6 

16.10.100 Use of exemptions. 

(1) Each Department that receives an application, or in the case of governmental proposals, the 

Department initiating the proposal, will forward the application to the responsible official for determination 

of whether the proposal is exempt. The determination that a proposal is exempt is final and not subject to 

administrative review. If a proposal is exempt, none of the procedural requirements of this chapter apply 

to the proposal. The City will not require completion of an environmental checklist for an exempt proposal. 

(2) In determining if a proposal is exempt, the responsible official will make certain the proposal is 

properly defined and will identify the governmental licenses required (WAC197-11-060). If a proposal 

includes exempt and nonexempt actions, the responsible official will determine the lead agency, even if 

the license application that triggers the responsible official’s consideration is exempt. 

(3) If a proposal includes both exempt and nonexempt actions, the responsible official may authorize 

exempt actions prior to compliance with the procedural requirements of this chapter, except that: 

(a) The responsible official will not give authorization for: 

(i) Any nonexempt action; 

(ii) Any action that would have an adverse environmental impact; or 

(iii) Any action that would limit the choice of alternatives; 

(b) The responsible official may withhold approval of an exempt action that would lead to 

modification of the physical environment, when such modification would serve no purpose if 

nonexempt action(s) were not approved; and 

(c) The responsible official may withhold approval of exempt actions that would lead to substantial 

financial expenditures by a private applicant when the expenditures would serve no purpose if 

nonexempt action(s) were not approved. (Ord. 102-98 § 2) 

16.10.110 Environmental checklist. 

(1) Except as provided in subsection (4) of this section, a completed environmental checklist, in the form 

provided in WAC 197-11-906, 197-11-960 must be filed at the same time as an application for a permit, 

license or other approval not exempted in this chapter; except, a checklist is not needed if the City and 

applicant agree an EIS is required, SEPA compliance has been completed, or SEPA compliance has 

been initiated by another agency. The City will use the environmental checklist to determine the lead 

agency and, if the lead agency, for making the threshold determination. 

Planning Commission October 6, 2016 
Page16 of 50

Agenda Item 3 Attachment 



PROPOSED COVINGTON SEPA RULE AMENDMENTS 

    7 

(2) For private proposals, the City will require the applicant to complete the environmental checklist, 

providing assistance as necessary. For City proposals, the Department initiating the proposal must 

complete the environmental checklist. 

(3) The City may complete or revise all or part of the environmental checklist for a private proposal, if 

either of the following occurs: 

(a) The City has technical information on a question or questions that is unavailable to the 

applicant; or 

(b) The applicant has provided inaccurate information on previous proposals or on proposals 

currently under consideration. 

(4) For projects submitted as planned actions under WAC 197-11-164, the City will use its existing 

environmental checklist form or may modify the environmental checklist form as provided in WAC 197-11-

315. The modified environmental checklist form may be prepared and adopted along with or as part of a 

planned action ordinance, or developed after the ordinance is adopted. In either case, a proposed 

modified environmental checklist form must be sent to the Department of Ecology to allow at least a 30-

day review prior to use. (Ord. 102-98 § 2) 

16.10.120 Mitigated determination of nonsignificance. 

(1) As provided in this section and WAC 197-11-350, the responsible official may issue a DNS based on 

conditions attached to the proposal by the responsible official or on changes to, or clarification of, the 

proposal made by the applicant. 

(2) An applicant may request in writing early notice of whether a declaration of significance is likely under 

WAC 197-11-350. The request must: 

(a) Follow submission of an application and adequate environmental checklist; and 

(b) Precede the City’s actual threshold determination for the proposal. 

(3) The City should respond to the request for early notice within 15 working days. The response will: 

(a) Be written; 

(b) State whether the City currently considers issuance of a DS likely and, if so, indicate the general 

or specific areas of concern that are leading to the City to consider a DS; and 

(c) State that the applicant may change or clarify the proposal to mitigate the indicated impacts, 

refiling the environmental checklist and/or application as necessary to reflect the changes or 

clarifications. 

Planning Commission October 6, 2016 
Page17 of 50

Agenda Item 3 Attachment 



PROPOSED COVINGTON SEPA RULE AMENDMENTS 

    8 

(4) As much as possible, the City will assist the applicant with identification of impacts to the extent 

necessary to formulate mitigation measures. 

(5) When an applicant submits a changed or clarified proposal, along with a revised or amended 

environmental checklist, the responsible official will base the threshold determination on the changed or 

clarified proposal and make the determination within 15 days of receiving the changed or clarified 

proposal: 

(a) If the responsible official indicated specific mitigation measures in its response to the request for 

early notice, and the applicant changed or clarified the proposal to include those specific mitigation 

measures, the City will issue and circulate a DNS under WAC 197-11-340(2). 

(b) If the responsible official indicated areas of concern, but did not indicate specific mitigation 

measures that would allow it to issue a DNS, the responsible official will make the threshold 

determination, issuing a DNS or DS as appropriate. 

(c) The applicant’s proposed mitigation measures (clarifications, changes or conditions) must be in 

writing and must be specific. For example, proposals to “control noise” or “prevent storm water 

runoff” are inadequate, whereas proposals to “muffle machinery to X decibel” or “construct 200-foot 

storm water retention pond at Y location” are adequate. 

(d) Mitigation measures, which justify issuance of a mitigated DNS, may be incorporated in the 

DNS by reference to agency staff reports, studies or other documents. 

(6) A mitigated DNS is issued under either WAC 197-11-340(2) requiring a 14-day comment period and 

public notice, or WAC 197-11-355, which may require no additional comment period beyond the comment 

period of the notice of application. 

(7) Mitigation measures incorporated in the mitigated DNS will be deemed conditions of approval of the 

permit decision and may be enforced in the same manner as any term or condition of the permit, or 

enforced in any manner specifically prescribed by the City. 

(8) If the City’s tentative decision on a permit or approval does not include mitigation measures that were 

incorporated in a mitigated DNS for the proposal, the responsible official will evaluate the threshold 

determination to assure consistency with WAC 197-11-340(3)(a) (withdrawal of DNS). 

The responsible official’s written response under subsection (2) of this section will not be construed as a 

determination of significance. In addition, preliminary discussion of clarifications or changes to a proposal, 

as opposed to a written request for early notice will not bind the City to consider the clarifications or 

changes in its threshold determination. (Ord. 102-98 § 2) 

Planning Commission October 6, 2016 
Page18 of 50

Agenda Item 3 Attachment 



PROPOSED COVINGTON SEPA RULE AMENDMENTS 

    9 

16.10.130 Environmental impact statement (EIS). 

A. This section contains the rules for preparing environmental impact statements. The City adopts the 

following provisions of the Washington Administrative Code by reference, as now existing or as hereafter 

amended: 

WAC 
197-11-400     Purpose of EIS 
197-11-402     General requirements 
197-11-405     EIS types 
197-11-406     EIS timing 
197-11-408     Scoping 
197-11-410     Expanded scoping 
197-11-420     EIS preparation 
197-11-425     Style and size 
197-11-430     Format 
197-11-435     Cover letter or memo 
197-11-440     EIS contents 
197-11-442     Contents of EIS on nonproject proposals 
197-11-443     EIS contents when prior nonproject EIS 
197-11-444     Elements of the environment 
197-11-448     Relationship of EIS to other considerations 
197-11-450     Cost-benefit analysis 
197-11-455     Issuance of DEIS 
197-11-460     Issuance of FEIS 
(Ord. 102-98 § 2) 

B. Regarding the preparation of an EIS in support of a Planned Action, the City adopts the following 

provisions of the Revised Code of Washington and Washington Administrative Code by reference, as 

now existing or as hereafter amended: 

 
RCW 43.21C.440 Planned action—Defined—Authority of a county, city, or town—Community 

meetings. 

WAC 197-11-164 Planned actions—Definition and criteria. 

WAC 197-11-168 Ordinances or resolutions designating planned actions—Procedures for 

adoption. 

WAC 197-11-172 Planned actions—Project review. 

C. The City adopts reference the following optional provisions for nonproject EIS preparation in the 

Revised Code of Washington. Unless specified in notices that the City is implementing these optional 

provisions, standard provisions in Subsection A or Subsection B shall apply. 
RCW 43.21C.420 Comprehensive plans and development regulations—Optional elements—

Nonproject environmental impact statements—Subarea plans—Transfer of 

development rights program—Recovery of expenses. 

RCW 43.21C.428 Recovery of expenses of nonproject environmental impact statements—Fees 

for subsequent development. 

 

Planning Commission October 6, 2016 
Page19 of 50

Agenda Item 3 Attachment 



PROPOSED COVINGTON SEPA RULE AMENDMENTS 

    10 

16.10.140 Preparation of EIS (additional considerations). 

(1) Preparation of draft and final EIS (DEIS and FEIS) and draft and final supplemental EIS (SEIS) is the 

responsibility of the responsible official. Before the City issues an EIS, the responsible official must be 

satisfied that it complies with this chapter and Chapter 197-11 WAC. 

(2) The DEIS and FEIS or draft and final SEIS will be prepared by City staff, the applicant, or by a 

consultant selected by the City or the applicant. If the responsible official requires an EIS for a proposal 

and determines that someone other than the City will prepare the EIS, the responsible official will notify 

the applicant immediately after completion of the threshold determination. The responsible official will also 

notify the applicant of the City’s procedure for EIS preparation, including approval of the DEIS and FEIS 

prior to distribution. 

(3) The responsible official may require an applicant to provide information the City does not posses, 

including specific investigations. However, the applicant is not required to supply information that is not 

required under this chapter or that is being requested from another agency. This does not apply to 

information the City may request under another ordinance or statute. 

(4) The following additional elements are part of the environment for the purpose of EIS contentmay 

optionally be addressed in an EIS to aid in decision-making at the direction of the SEPA Responsible 

Official, but do not add to the criteria for threshold determinations or perform any other function or 

purpose under this chapter consistent with WAC 197-11-448 and WAC 197-11-450: 

(a) Economy; 

(b) Social policy analysis; 

(c) Cost-benefit analysis. (Ord. 102-98 § 2) 

16.10.150 Commenting. 

This section contains rules for consulting, commenting and responding on all environmental documents 

under SEPA, including rules for public notice and hearings. The City adopts the following provisions of the 

Washington Administrative Code by reference, as now existing or as hereafter amended: 

WAC 
197-11-500     Purpose 
197-11-502     Inviting comment 
197-11-504     Availability and cost of environmental documents 
197-11-508     SEPA register 
197-11-510     Public notice 
197-11-535     Public hearings and meetings 
197-11-545     Effect of no comment 
197-11-550     Specificity of comments 
197-11-560     FEIS response to comments 
197-11-570     Consulted agency costs to assist lead agency 

Planning Commission October 6, 2016 
Page20 of 50

Agenda Item 3 Attachment 



PROPOSED COVINGTON SEPA RULE AMENDMENTS 

    11 

(Ord. 102-98 § 2) 

16.10.160 Public notice. 

(1) Whenever possible, the City will integrate the public notice required under this section with existing 

notice procedures for the City’s nonexempt permit(s) or approval(s) required for the proposal. 

(2) Whenever the City issues a DNS under WAC 197-11-340(2) or a DS under WAC197-11-360(3) the 

City will give public notice as follows: 

(a) If an environmental document is issued concurrently with the notice of application, the public 

notice requirements for the notice of application in RCW36.70B.110(4) will suffice to meet the 

SEPA public notice requirements in WAC197-11-510(1); 

(b) If no public notice is otherwise required for the permit or approval, the City will give notice of the 

DNS or DS by: 

(i) Posting the property, for site-specific proposals; 

(ii) Notifying public or private groups, which have expressed interest in a certain proposal or in 

the type of proposal being considered; 

(iii) Sending notice to agency mailing lists (either general lists or lists for specific proposals for 

subject areas); or 

(c) Whenever the City issues a DS under WAC 197-11-360(3), the City will state the scoping 

procedure for the proposal in the DS as required in WAC 197-11-408and in the public notice. 

(3) If a DNS is issued using the optional DNS process, the public notice requirements for a notice of 

application in RCW 36.70B.110(4), as supplemented by the requirements in WAC 197-11-355, will suffice 

to meet the SEPA public notice requirements in WAC 197-11-510(b). 

(4) Whenever the City issues a DEIS under WAC 197-11-455(5) or an SEIS under WAC 197-11-620, 

notice of the availability of those documents will be given by indicating the availability of the DEIS in any 

public notice required for a nonexempt license, and by at least one of the following: 

(a) Posting the property, for site-specific proposals; 

(b) Publishing the notice in a newspaper of general circulation in the County, City, or general area 

where the proposal is located; 

(c) Notifying public or private groups, which have expressed interest in a certain proposal or in the 

type of proposal being considered; 

Planning Commission October 6, 2016 
Page21 of 50

Agenda Item 3 Attachment 



PROPOSED COVINGTON SEPA RULE AMENDMENTS 

    12 

(d) Notifying the news media; 

(e) Placing notices in appropriate regional, neighborhood, ethnic, or trade journals; and/or 

(f) Publishing notice in agency newsletter and/or sending notice to agency mailing lists (either 

general lists or lists for specific proposals for subject areas); or 

(g) Such other method as determined by the responsible official. 

(5) Public notice for projects that qualify as planned actions will be tied to the underlying permit as 

specified in WAC 197-11-172(3) and meet requirements for notices to tribes and agencies with 

jurisdiction as provided in RCW 43.21C.440 (3)(b). 

(6) The City may require an applicant to complete the public notice requirement for the applicant’s 

proposal at applicant’s expense. (Ord. 102-98 § 2) 

16.10.170 Designation of official to perform consulted agency responsibilities for the City. 

(1) The responsible official will be responsible for preparation of written comments for the City in response 

to a consultation request prior to a threshold determination, participation in scoping, and reviewing a 

DEIS. 

(2) The responsible official will be responsible for the City’s compliance with WAC 197-11-550 whenever 

the City is a consulted agency and is authorized to develop operating procedures that will ensure that 

responses to consultation requests are prepared in a timely fashion and include data from all appropriate 

Departments of the City. (Ord. 102-98 § 2) 

16.10.180 Using existing environmental documents. 

This section contains rules for using and supplementing existing environmental documents prepared 

under SEPA or NEPA for the City’s own environmental compliance. The City adopts the following 

provisions of the Washington Administrative Code by reference, as now existing or as hereafter 

amended: 

WAC 
197-11-164     Planned actions – Definition and criteria 
197-11-168     Ordinances or resolutions designating planned actions – Procedures for adoption 
197-11-172     Planned actions – Project review 
197-11-600     When to use existing environmental documents 
197-11-610     Use of NEPA documents 
197-11-620     Supplemental environmental impact statement – Procedures 
197-11-625     Addenda – Procedures 
197-11-630     Adoption – Procedures 
197-11-635     Incorporation by reference – Procedures 
197-11-640     Combining documents 
(Ord. 102-98 § 2) 

Planning Commission October 6, 2016 
Page22 of 50

Agenda Item 3 Attachment 



PROPOSED COVINGTON SEPA RULE AMENDMENTS 

    13 

16.10.190 SEPA and agency decisions. 

A. This section contains rules (and policies) for SEPA’s substantive authority, such as decisions to 

mitigate or reject proposals as a result of SEPA. This section also contains procedures for appealing 

SEPA determinations to agencies or the courts. The City adopts the following provisions of the 

Washington Administrative Code by reference, as now existing or as hereafter amended: 

WAC 
197-11-650     Purpose 
197-11-655     Implementation 
197-11-660     Substantive authority and mitigation 
197-11-680     Appeals 
(Ord. 102-98 § 2) 
B. Administrative appeal procedures are addressed in CMC 16.10.210. 

16.10.200 Substantive authority. 

(1) The policies and goals set forth in this chapter are supplementary to those in the existing authorization 

of the City. 

(2) The City may attach conditions to a permit or approval for a proposal so long as: 

(a) Such conditions are necessary to mitigate specific probable significant adverse environmental 

impacts identified in environmental documents prepared pursuant to this chapter; and 

(b) Such conditions are in writing; and 

(c) The mitigation measures included in such conditions are reasonable and capable of being 

accomplished; and 

(d) The City has considered whether other local, State or Federal mitigation measures applied to 

the proposal are sufficient to mitigate the identified impacts; and 

(e) Such conditions are based on one or more policies in subsection (4) of this section and cited in 

the license or other decision document. 

(3) The City may deny a permit or approval for a proposal on the basis of SEPA so long as: 

(a) A finding is made that approving the proposal would result in probable significant adverse 

environmental impacts that are identified in an FEIS or final SEIS prepared pursuant to this chapter; 

and 

(b) A finding is made that there are no reasonable mitigation measures capable of being 

accomplished that are sufficient to mitigate the identified impact; and 

Planning Commission October 6, 2016 
Page23 of 50

Agenda Item 3 Attachment 



PROPOSED COVINGTON SEPA RULE AMENDMENTS 

    14 

(c) The denial is based on one or more policies identified in subsection (4) of this section and 

identified in writing in the decision document. 

(4) The City designates and adopts the following policies as the basis for the City’s exercise of authority 

pursuant to this section: 

(a) The City will use all practicable means, consistent with other essential consideration of State 

policy, to improve and coordinate plans, functions, programs, and resources to the end that the 

State and its citizens may: 

(i) Fulfill the responsibilities of each generation as trustee of the environment for succeeding 

generations; 

(ii) Assure for all Washington safe, healthful, productive and aesthetically and culturally 

pleasing surroundings; 

(iii) Attain the widest range of beneficial uses of the environment without degrading, risk to 

health or safety, or other undesirable and unintended consequences; 

(iv) Preserve important historic, cultural, and natural aspects of our national heritage; 

(v) Maintain, wherever possible, an environment which supports diversity and variety of 

individual choice; 

(vi) Achieve a balance between population and resource use which will permit high standards 

of living and a wide sharing of life’s amenities; and 

(vii) Enhance the quality of renewable resources and approach the maximum attainable 

recycling of depletable resources. 

(b) The City recognizes that each person has a fundamental and inalienable right to a healthful 

environment and that each person has a responsibility to contribute to the preservation and 

enhancement of the environment. 

(c) The City adopts by reference the policies and regulations in the following documents: 

(i) The City’s current most recently adopted comprehensive plan, as amended; 

(ii) The City’s zoning code(CMC Title 18), as amended; 

(iii) The City’s subdivision code(CMC Title 17), as amended; 

(iv) The City’s most recently adopted International Building Code, as amended; 

Planning Commission October 6, 2016 
Page24 of 50

Agenda Item 3 Attachment 



PROPOSED COVINGTON SEPA RULE AMENDMENTS 

    15 

(v) The City’s most recently adopted International Residential Code; 

(vi) The City’s most recently adopted Uniform Plumbing Code, as amended; 

(vii) The City’s most recently adopted International Mechanical Code, as amended; 

(viii) The City’s most recently adopted International Fire Code, as amended; 

(ix) The City’s most recently adopted International Existing Building Code; 

(x) The City’s most recently adopted International Energy Conservation Code, as amended; 

(xi) The City’s most recently adopted International Property Maintenance Code, as amended; 

(xii) The City’s street, sidewalk and bridges code (CMC Title 12), as amended; 

(xiii) The City’s planning  and development code (CMC Title 14), as amended; 

(xiv) The City’s most recently adopted shoreline management codemaster program, as 

amended; 

 (xv) The City’s water and sewer systems codeState Department of Health’s Water System 

Planning Handbook, as amended; 

(xvi) The City’s surface water management codestormwater manuals (CMC Title 13), as 

amended; 

(xvii) The City’s current six-year transportation improvement program, as amended; 

(xviii) The City’s current capital improvement program, as amended; 

 (xix) The current King County transportation needs report, as amended; 

(xx) All other City-adopted land development ordinances and policies; and 

(xxi) The City’s current Design and Construction Standards and Specifications. (Ord. 06-05 

§ 1; Ord. 23-04 § 7; Ord. 52-02 § 2; Ord. 102-98 § 2) 

16.10.210 Appeals. 

(1) The City establishes the following administrative appeal procedures under RCW 43.21C.075 and 

WAC 197-11-680: 

(a)   Project Permits: Any agency or person may appeal the City’s procedural compliance with 

Chapter 197-11 WAC for issuance of the following (the appeal must be made to the Administrative 

Planning Commission October 6, 2016 
Page25 of 50

Agenda Item 3 Attachment 



PROPOSED COVINGTON SEPA RULE AMENDMENTS 

    16 

Hearing Examiner within fourteen (14) days of the date of issuance. A decision involving a SEPA 

determination of nonsignificance which required public comments shall have the appeal period 

extended an additional seven (7) days: 

(i)    A final DNS; 

(ii)    A DS; or 

(iii)  A Final EIS. 

(b) Legislative Proposals: There is no administrative appeal of a DNS, DS, or Final EIS adequacy 

associated with a legislative decision. 

 (21) Appeals of an environmental determination will be in the same manner as the project requiring the 

environmental determination. 

(a) For any appeal under this section, the City will provide for a record that will consist of the 

following: 

(i) Findings and conclusions; 

(ii) Testimony under oath; and 

(iii) A taped or written transcript. 

(b) The City may require the appellant to provide an electronic transcript. 

(c) The procedural determination by the responsible official will carry substantial weight in any 

appeal proceeding. 

(32) The City will give official notice under WAC 197-11-168(5) whenever it issues a permit or approval for 

which a statute or ordinance established a time limit for commencing judicial appeal. (Ord. 102-98 § 2) 

16.10.220 Notice – Statute of limitations. 

(1) The City, applicant for, or proponent of an action may publish a notice of action pursuant to 

RCW 43.21C.080 for any action. 

(2) The form of the notice must be substantially in the form provided in WAC 197-11-990. The notice will 

be published by the City Clerk, applicant, or proponent pursuant to RCW 43.21C.080. (Ord. 102-98 § 2) 

16.10.230 Definitions. 

This section contains uniform usage and definitions of terms under SEPA. The City adopts the following 

provisions of the Washington Administrative Code by reference, as now existing or as hereafter 

amended, and as supplemented: 

Planning Commission October 6, 2016 
Page26 of 50

Agenda Item 3 Attachment 



PROPOSED COVINGTON SEPA RULE AMENDMENTS 

    17 

WAC 
197-11-700     Definitions 
197-11-701     Act 
197-11-704     Action 
197-11-706     Addendum 
197-11-708     Adoption 
197-11-710     Affected tribe 
197-11-712     Affecting 
197-11-714     Agency 
197-11-716     Applicant 
197-11-718     Built environment 
197-11-720     Categorical exemption 
197-11-721     Closed record appeal 
197-11-722     Consolidated appeal 
197-11-724     Consulted agency 
197-11-726     Cost-benefit analysis 
197-11-728     County/City 
197-11-730     Decision maker 
197-11-732     Department 
197-11-734     Determination of nonsignificance (DNS) 
197-11-736     Determination of significance (DS) 
197-11-738     Environmental impact statement (EIS) 
197-11-740     Environment 
197-11-742     Environmental checklist 
197-11-744     Environmental document 
197-11-746     Environmental review 
197-11-750     Expanded scoping 
197-11-752     Impacts 
197-11-754     Incorporation by reference 
197-11-756     Lands covered by water 
197-11-758     Lead agency 
197-11-760     License 
197-11-762     Local agency 
197-11-764     Major action 
197-11-766     Mitigated DNS (MDNS) 
197-11-768     Mitigation 
197-11-770     Natural environment 
197-11-772     National Environmental Policy Act (NEPA) 
197-11-774     Nonproject 
197-11-775     Open record hearing 
197-11-776     Phased review 
197-11-778     Preparation 
197-11-780     Private project 
197-11-782     Probable 
197-11-784     Proposal 
197-11-786     Reasonable alternative 
197-11-788     Responsible official 
197-11-790     State Environmental Policy Act (SEPA) 
197-11-792     Scope 
197-11-793     Scoping 
197-11-794     Significant 
197-11-796     State agency 
197-11-797     Threshold determination 
197-11-799     Underlying governmental action 
(Ord. 102-98 § 2) 

Planning Commission October 6, 2016 
Page27 of 50

Agenda Item 3 Attachment 



PROPOSED COVINGTON SEPA RULE AMENDMENTS 

    18 

16.10.240 Categorical exemptions. 

The City adopts the following provisions of the Washington Administrative Code by reference, as now 

existing or as hereafter amended and as supplemented in this chapter: 

WAC 
197-11-800     Categorical exemptions 
197-11-880     Emergencies 
197-11-890     Petitioning DOE to change exemptions 
(Ord. 102-98 § 2) 

16.10.250 Agency compliance. 

This section contains rules for agency compliance with SEPA, including rules for charging fees under the 

SEPA process, designating categorical exemptions that do not apply within critical areas, listing agencies 

with environmental expertise, selecting the lead agency, and applying these rules to current agency 

activities. The City adopts the following provisions of the Washington Administrative Code by reference, 

as now existing or as hereafter amended: 

WAC 
197-11-900     Purpose of this part 
197-11-902     Agency SEPA policies 
197-11-916     Application to ongoing actions 
197-11-920     Agencies with environmental expertise 
197-11-922     Lead agency rules 
197-11-924     Determining the lead agency 
197-11-926     Lead agency for governmental proposals 
197-11-928     Lead agency for public and private proposals 
197-11-930     Lead agency for private projects with one agency with jurisdiction 
197-11-932     Lead agency for private projects requiring licenses from more than one agency, when one 

of the agencies is a County/City 
197-11-934     Lead agency for private projects requiring licenses from a local agency, not a City/County, 

and one or more State agencies 
197-11-938     Lead agencies for specific proposals 
197-11-940     Transfer of lead agency status to a State agency 
197-11-942     Agreements on lead agency status 
197-11-944     Agreements on division of lead agency duties 
197-11-946     DOE resolution of lead agency disputes 
197-11-948     Assumption of lead agency status 
(Ord. 102-98 § 2) 

16.10.260 Fees. 

(1) Threshold Determination. For every environmental checklist review, the City will collect a fee as set 

forth in the current fee resolution. The time periods provided by this chapter for making a threshold 

determination will not begin until payment of the fee. 

(2) Environmental Impact Statement. 

(a) As lead agency, the City shall charge a fee based on an hourly rate as set forth in the fee 

resolution for review of an EIS submitted by an applicant. 

Planning Commission October 6, 2016 
Page28 of 50

Agenda Item 3 Attachment 



PROPOSED COVINGTON SEPA RULE AMENDMENTS 

    19 

(b) For all proposals requiring an EIS where the City is lead agency and the responsible official 

determines that the EIS will be prepared by City employees, the City will charge and collect a 

reasonable fee from the applicant to cover costs incurred by the City in the preparation of the EIS. If 

it is determined that an EIS is required, applicants will be advised of projected costs of the EIS prior 

to actual preparation and must post a bond or otherwise ensure payment of all such costs. 

(c) The responsible official may determine that the City will contract directly with a consultant for 

preparation of environmental documents for activities initiated by some persons or entity other than 

the City. The applicant shall be responsible for payment of any such costs and expenses, and must 

post bond or otherwise ensure payment of such costs. Such consultants will be selected by mutual 

agreement of the City and applicant after a call for bids. 

(d) If the proposal is modified so that an EIS is no longer required, the responsible official will 

refund any fees collected under subsections (2)(a) or (b) of this section which remain after incurred 

costs are paid. (Ord. 20-07 § 91; Ord. 102-98 § 2) 

16.10.270 Forms. 

The City adopts the following provisions of the Washington Administrative Code by reference, as now 

existing or as hereafter amended: 

WAC 
197-11-960     Environmental checklist 
197-11-965     Adoption notice 
197-11-970     Determination of nonsignificance (DNS) 
197-11-980     Determination of significance (DS) and scoping notice 
197-11-985     Notice of assumption of lead agency status 
197-11-990     Notice of action 
(Ord. 102-98 § 2) 

 

Chapter 14.30 
PERMIT DECISION TYPES 

Sections: 

14.30.010    Purpose. 

14.30.020    Classification of permit decision types. 

14.30.030    Determination of proper decision type. 

14.30.040    Decision types. 

14.30.050    Requirements by decision type. 

14.30.060    Legislative actions. 

14.30.070    Administrative interpretations. 

Planning Commission October 6, 2016 
Page29 of 50

Agenda Item 3 Attachment 



PROPOSED COVINGTON SEPA RULE AMENDMENTS 

    20 

14.30.010 Purpose. 

The purpose of Chapters 14.30, 14.35, 14.40 and 14.45 CMC is to establish standard procedures for land 

use permit applications, public notice, hearings and appeals in the City. These procedures are designed 

to promote timely and informed public participation in discretionary land use decisions; eliminate 

redundancy in the application, permit review, hearing and appeal processes; provide for uniformity in 

public notice procedures; minimize delay and expense; and result in development approvals that 

implement the policies of the comprehensive plan. These procedures also provide for an integrated and 

consolidated land use permit and environmental review process. (Ord. 02-09 § 2) 

14.30.020 Classification of permit decision types. 

Decisions on permit applications shall be classified as either Type 1, 2, 3 or 4, based on the amount of 

discretion associated with each decision. Procedures for the four different types are distinguished 

according to who makes the decision, whether public notice is required, whether a public hearing is 

required before a decision is made, and whether an administrative appeal process is provided. The types 

of decisions are set forth in CMC 14.30.040 and the requirements for each type are set forth in 

CMC14.30.050. (Ord. 02-09 § 2) 

14.30.030 Determination of proper decision type. 

(1) Determination by Director. The Director shall determine the proper procedure for all permit 

applications. If there is a question as to the appropriate type of process, the Director shall resolve it in 

favor of the higher type number. 

(2) Optional Consolidated Permit Processing. An application that involves two or more procedures may 

be processed collectively under the highest numbered procedure required for any part of the application 

or processed individually under each of the procedures identified by the code. The applicant may 

determine whether the application shall be processed collectively or individually. If the application is 

processed under the individual procedures option, the highest numbered type procedure must be 

processed prior to the subsequent lower numbered procedure. If the individual procedure option is 

chosen, the applicant will be eligible for any fee reduction contained in the current fee resolution. 

(3) SEPA Review. SEPA review shall be conducted concurrently with development project review. The 

following are exempt from concurrent review: 

(a) Projects categorically exempt from SEPA; and 

(b) Components of previously completed planned actions, to the extent permitted by law and 

consistent with the EIS for the planned action. 

(4) Decisionmaker(s). Applications processed in accordance with subsection (2) of this section which 

have the same highest numbered procedure but are assigned different hearing bodies shall be heard 

Planning Commission October 6, 2016 
Page30 of 50

Agenda Item 3 Attachment 



PROPOSED COVINGTON SEPA RULE AMENDMENTS 

    21 

collectively by the highest decisionmaker(s). The City Council is the highest, followed by the Hearing 

Examiner or Planning Commission, as applicable, and then the Director. 

(5) Hearings. Permits are allowed only one open record hearing and one closed record appeal hearing, 

except for the appeal of a determination of significance. (Ord. 02-09 § 2) 

14.30.040 Decision types.1 

Type 1 Type 2 Type 3 Type 4 

Building Permit 

(15.05) 

Grading Permit 

(14.60) 

Boundary Line 

Adjustment (17.40) 

Right-of-Way Use 

Permit (12.35) 

Design and 

Construction 

Standards Deviation 

(12.60) 

Clearing and Grading 

Design Deviation 

(14.60) 

Shoreline Exemption 

(16.05) 

Code Interpretation 

(14.30) 

Miscellaneous 

Administrative 

Decisions 

Minor Tree Removal 

(18.45) 

WCF Collocation on 

a Transmission 

Structure or WCF 

Tower (18.70) 

Short Plat (Including 

Revisions and 

Alterations) (17.20) 

Design and Construction 

Standards Variance 

(12.60) 

Clearing and Grading 

Design Variance (14.60) 

Design Departure from 

the City of Covington 

Design Guidelines and 

Standards (18.31) 

Downtown Permitted 

Use Determination 

(18.31) 

Temporary Use (18.85) 

Shoreline Substantial 

Development 

Permit2 (16.05) 

SEPA Threshold 

Determination3 

Commercial Site 

Development Permit 

(18.31 and 18.110) 

Re-use of Facilities 

(18.85) 

Critical Areas 

Reasonable Use 

Exceptions (18.65) 

Preliminary Plat (17.20) 

Plat Alterations (17.25) 

Preliminary Plat 

Revisions (17.20) 

Zoning Variance 

(18.125) 

Conditional Use 

Permits (18.125) 

New Wireless 

Communication Facility 

Towers and Height 

Modifications (18.70) 

Final 

Subdivision4(17.25) 

Shoreline Environment 

Redesignations 

(16.05) 

Plat or Short Plat 

Vacations (17.25) 

Street Vacations 

(12.55) 

Planning Commission October 6, 2016 
Page31 of 50

Agenda Item 3 Attachment 



PROPOSED COVINGTON SEPA RULE AMENDMENTS 

    22 

Binding Site Plan (17.30)

Major Tree Removal 

(18.45) 

Stormwater Manuals 

Variance (13.25) 

Wireless Communication 

Facilities Collocations 

(18.70) 

1 If a conflict between this chart and the text of the CMC exists, the text of the CMC controls. 

2 When applications for shoreline permits are combined with other permits requiring Type 3 or 4 land use 

decisions, the Examiner, not the Director, makes the decision. All shoreline permits, including shoreline 

variances and conditional uses, are appealable to the State Shorelines Hearings Board and not to the 

Hearing Examiner. 

3 Appeal to Examiner is limited to the SEPA threshold determination for a project permit. The decision on the 

Type 1 permit itself is appealable to Superior Court. 

4 Final subdivisions are submitted directly to the City Council for final decision without a recommendation by 

the Hearing Examiner. 

(Ord. 08-13 § 3 (Exh. A); Ord. 06-13 § 2 (Exh. A); Ord. 09-12 § 2 (Exh. B); Ord. 10-10 § 3 (Exh. C); Ord. 13-

09 § 17; Ord. 02-09 § 2) 

14.30.050 Requirements by decision type.1 

  Type 1 Type 2 Type 3 Type 4 

Recommendation 

made by: 

n/a n/a Director Hearing 

Examiner 

Final decision made 

by: 

Director Director Hearing 

Examiner 

City Council 

Notice of permit 

application: 

No Yes Yes Yes 

Notice of final 

decision: 

No Yes Yes Yes 

Planning Commission October 6, 2016 
Page32 of 50

Agenda Item 3 Attachment 



PROPOSED COVINGTON SEPA RULE AMENDMENTS 

    23 

Open record public 

hearing: 

No No Yes, before the 

Hearing 

Examiner 

Yes, before the 

Hearing 

Examiner 

Closed record 

appeal hearing: 

No Yes, before the Hearing 

Examiner regarding 

project proposals 

No No 

Judicial appeal: King County 

Superior 

Court 

King County Superior 

Court 

King County 

Superior Court 

King County 

Superior Court 

1 If a conflict between this chart and the text of the CMC exists, the text of the CMC controls. 

(Ord. 02-09 § 2) 

14.30.060 Legislative actions. 

(1) Defined. Legislative actions involve the creation, amendment, or implementation of policy or law by 

ordinance. In contrast to other types of actions, legislative actions apply to large geographic areas and 

are of interest to many property owners and citizens. Legislative actions are only taken after an open 

record hearing. 

(2) Decisions. The following decisions are legislative, and are not subject to the procedures in this 

chapter, unless otherwise specified: 

(a) Zoning code amendments; 

(b) Adoption of development regulations and amendments; 

(c) Zoning map amendments; 

(d) Adoption of the comprehensive plan and any plan amendments; and 

(e) Annexations. 

(3) Planning Commission. The Planning Commission shall hold a public hearing and make 

recommendations to the City Council on the decisions listed in subsection (2) of this section. 

(4) City Council. The City Council may hold a public hearing on the decisions listed in subsection (2) of 

this section prior to passage of an ordinance or entry of a decision. 

Planning Commission October 6, 2016 
Page33 of 50

Agenda Item 3 Attachment 



PROPOSED COVINGTON SEPA RULE AMENDMENTS 

    24 

(5) Public Notice. Unless otherwise provided for herein, notice of the public hearing shall be provided to 

the public at least 14 days prior to the hearing by publishing notice as provided for in CMC 14.40.040(2). 

In addition to publishing notice and posting notice at City Hall, at least 14 days prior to the hearing the 

City shall mail notice of the public hearing to the applicant, relevant government agencies, and other 

interested parties who have requested in writing to be notified of the hearing. If the legislative action is for 

a comprehensive plan amendment, notice of the public hearing shall also be posted and mailed pursuant 

to CMC 14.40.040(3). The City may also provide optional methods of public notice as provided in 

CMC 14.40.050. 

(6) Appeals. The City Council’s final legislative decision may be appealed together with any SEPA final 

threshold determination by filing a petition with the Growth Management Hearings Board pursuant to the 

requirements set forth in RCW 36.70A.290, as currently adopted and hereafter amended from time to 

time. (Ord. 09-16 § 4 (Exh. C); Ord. 02-09 § 2) 

14.30.070 Administrative interpretations. 

Unless otherwise specified and except for other agencies with authority to implement specific provisions 

of this chapter, the Director is delegated the authority to issue official interpretations of all development 

regulations. Requests for an official interpretation must be submitted in writing and be accompanied by 

the required fee as set forth in the City’s current fee resolution. (Ord. 02-09 § 2) 

Chapter 14.45 
APPEAL PROCEDURES 

Sections: 
14.45.010    Decisions final unless appealed. 
14.45.020    Appeals of administrative decisions. 
14.45.030    Procedures. 
14.45.040    Judicial appeal. 
14.45.050    Procedural irregularity. 

14.45.010 Decisions final unless appealed. 

All administrative decisions shall be final unless the applicant or an aggrieved party files an appeal as set 

forth in this chapter. (Ord. 02-09 § 5) 

14.45.020 Appeals of administrative decisions. 

The procedures set forth in this chapter shall apply to all appeals to the Hearing Examiner or to the City 

Council that are authorized by the Covington Municipal Code, unless a conflicting procedure or action is 

required by the code provision authorizing the appeal. (Ord. 02-09 § 5) 

14.45.030 Procedures. 

(1) An administrative appeal of a Type 2, 3, or 4 project decision and of any environmental determination 

issued at the same time as the project decision shall be filed with the City Clerk within 14 days after the 

Planning Commission October 6, 2016 
Page34 of 50

Agenda Item 3 Attachment 



PROPOSED COVINGTON SEPA RULE AMENDMENTS 

    25 

notice of the decision or after other notice that the decision has been made and is appealable. The appeal 

fee as set forth in the current fee resolution shall also be filed with the City within this time frame. The 

appeal period shall be extended for an additional seven days if public comment is allowed on a 

determination of nonsignificance issued as part of the appealable project permit decision. 

(2) Content of Appeal. Appeals shall be in writing, be accompanied by the required appeal fee, and 

contain the following information: 

(a) Appellant’s name, address and phone number; 

(b) Appellant’s statement describing his or her standing to appeal; 

(c) Identification of the application which is the subject of the appeal; 

(d) Appellant’s statement of grounds for appeal and the facts upon which the appeal is based; 

(e) The relief sought, including the specific nature and extent; 

(f) A statement that the appellant has read the appeal and believes the contents to be true, followed 

by the appellant’s signature. 

(3) Upon timely receipt of a notice of appeal and fee, the City Clerk shall set the matter for a hearing 

before the Hearing Examiner. 

(4) The City Clerk shall provide notice of the hearing at which the appeal shall be considered at least 14 

calendar days prior to the hearing, or as otherwise provided by law. The hearing notice shall be provided 

by: 

(a) Posting notice as provided in CMC 14.40.040(1); 

(b) Publishing notice as provided in CMC 14.40.040(2); 

(c) Mailing notice to the appellant, to the applicant, and to any person who requested notice of 

decision or submitted substantial comments on the application. 

(5) The time period for considering and deciding an appeal shall not exceed 90 days for an open record 

appeal hearing or 60 days for a closed record appeal. The parties to an appeal may agree to extend 

these time periods. 

(6) The Hearing Examiner shall render a decision based upon the written record of the previous 

proceedings, including, but not limited to, written materials, exhibits and minutes. The Hearing Examiner 

may consider a tape recording of the previous proceedings. The Hearing Examiner may hear oral 

Planning Commission October 6, 2016 
Page35 of 50

Agenda Item 3 Attachment 



PROPOSED COVINGTON SEPA RULE AMENDMENTS 

    26 

argument from the appellant, the applicant if the appellant is not the applicant, and the City. The Hearing 

Examiner may affirm the decision, reverse the decision, affirm the decision with modification, or remand 

the decision to the decisionmaker for further consideration. The Hearing Examiner shall affirm the 

decision unless from a review of the record it is determined the decision being appealed meets one of the 

following criteria: 

(a) The body or officer that made the decision engaged in unlawful procedure or failed to follow a 

prescribed process, unless the error was harmless; 

(b) The decision is an erroneous interpretation by the law, after allowing for such deference as is 

due the construction of a law by a local jurisdiction with expertise; 

(c) The decision is not supported by evidence that is substantial when viewed in light of the whole 

record; 

(d) The decision is a clearly erroneous application of the law to the facts; 

(e) The decision is outside the authority or jurisdiction of the body or officer making the decision; 

(f) The decision violates the constitutional rights of the party seeking relief. 

(7) The Hearing Examiner shall issue a written decision on the appeal containing: 

(a) A statement of the decision on appeal, including any conditions; 

(b) A statement of the facts upon which the decision is based and the conclusions of law derived 

from these facts; and 

(c) A statement of the right of an affected party to appeal the decision of the Hearing Examiner. 

(8) If a permit is granted, the City official administering the permit may allow the applicant to begin all or a 

portion of the construction or commence all or a portion of the operations during the pendency of any 

appeal; provided, that such construction or operation is begun at the applicant’s own risk. If the decision 

being appealed is reversed or modified, the applicant may be required to remove or alter any 

development or action inconsistent with the final decision and/or restore the environment to its pre-

existing condition. (Ord. 02-09 § 5) 

14.45.040 Judicial appeal. 

An appeal from the decision of the Hearing Examiner for which no other administrative appeal is provided 

shall be filed and served within 21 days of the issuance of the decision in accordance with 

Chapter 36.70C RCW. (Ord. 02-09 § 5) 

Planning Commission October 6, 2016 
Page36 of 50

Agenda Item 3 Attachment 



PROPOSED COVINGTON SEPA RULE AMENDMENTS 

    27 

14.45.050 Procedural irregularity. 

No procedural irregularity or informality in the notice, consideration, hearing or other matter relating to the 

decision or the appeal shall affect the final decision, or any other action leading to the final decision, 

unless substantial rights of a person with demonstrable beneficial interests are adversely affected and 

unless objection is made to the City at the earliest possible time after discovery. (Ord. 02-09 § 5) 

 

Planning Commission October 6, 2016 
Page37 of 50

Agenda Item 3 Attachment 



Planning Commission October 6, 2016 
Page38 of 50



 

 

City of Covington 
16720 SE 271st St. Suite 100 
Covington, WA 98042 
 
City Hall – 253.480.2400 
www.covingtonwa.gov 
 

Memo 
To:   Planning Commission   

From:   Ann Mueller, Senior Planner 
   Richard Hart, Community Development Director 
 
Date:  September 30, 2016 

 
Re:  Public Hearing on Amendments to Repeal CMC 18.100 Property Specific Development Standards/Special 

Overlay Districts 

Background 
City staff has identified sections of the existing Covington Municipal Code that were not previously repealed or 
deleted when new and updated regulations were adopted to address the same issue. These regulations were 
initially adopted from King County Code shortly after the city incorporated. These regulations are now out of 
date, and in some instances, reference non‐applicable county zoning and standards that are not implemented 
by staff in the review of land use applications.   
 
Repealing Regulations relating to Property Specific Development Standards/Special Overlay Districts (CMC 18.100) 

Staff recommends repealing CMC Chapter 18.100 in its entirety. The city’s comprehensive plan does not 
identify the need for special property specific development standards or overlay districts to implement land 
use policies or environmental regulations. CMC 18.68 Critical Area regulations and the city’s Shoreline Master 
Program have been approved by the city to address groundwater, aquifer, erosion hazards, and urban stream 
protection.  CMC 18.31 Downtown Development and Design Standards have been adopted to promote 
economic development in the downtown zones.  
 
Attachment A is a copy of the DNS issued on August 26, 2016, with a 14‐day comment period which ended on 
September 9, 2016 – no comments were received on the SEPA determination.  Attachment A includes the 
regulations from CMC 18.100 proposed to be repealed. 
 
A 60‐day notice of the proposed change to the Zoning Code was sent to the Washington State Department of 
Commerce on August 9, 2016.  On September 16, 2016, public notice of this proposed code amendment was 
published in the Covington Reporter, placed on the City website and posted at City Hall.   
 
Public Hearing 
The Planning Commission will hold a public hearing on the proposal to repeal CMC 18.100 regulations at its 
October 6, 2016 regularly scheduled meeting.  At the public hearing the Planning Commission will hear any 
public testimony and then may discuss the proposed code amendment. After the Planning Commission 
discussion, they may direct staff to bring back items for further clarification and modification, make a final 
recommendation to the City Council, or continue review and discussion at a future meeting.  
 
 
 
 

Planning Commission October 6, 2016 
Page39 of 50

Agenda Item 4



 

Applicable Decision Criteria for Review of Development Regulation Amendments 
Following is the criteria (in italics) that the Planning Commission must use to determine if they will recommend 
the proposed code amendments to the City Council for their final review and decision.  
 
(1) The proposed amendment is consistent with the goals, objectives, and policies of the comprehensive plan; 
Staff Findings: The proposed amendments to repeal CMC 18.100 Property Specific Development 
Standards/Special Overlay Districts development regulations are consistent with the goals, objectives and 
policies of Covington’s Comprehensive Plan. 
 
(2) The proposed amendment is consistent with the scope and purpose of the City’s zoning ordinances and the 
description and purpose of the zone classification applied for; 
Staff Findings: The proposed amendments are not‐site specific and apply across all zones of the City.  The 
amendments are consistent with the existing zoning code, and more recent standards have been previously 
adopted to ensure that critical areas are protected and economic development opportunities in the downtown 
are promoted.  
 
(3) Circumstances have changed substantially since the establishment of the current zoning map or district to 
warrant the proposed amendment; 
Staff Findings:  N/A. The proposed amendments will not affect the current zoning map or zoning district 
designations. There are no overlay districts or property specific zoning in use in the City of Covington. 
 
(4) The proposed zoning is consistent and compatible with the uses and zoning of surrounding property; 
Staff Findings:  N/A. The proposed amendments do not affect the existing zoning of land in the City of 
Covington. 
 
(5) The property that is the subject of the amendment is suited for the uses allowed in the proposed zoning 
classification; 
Staff Findings:  N/A. The proposed amendments are not site‐specific.   
 
(6) The amendment is in compliance with the three‐year limitation rule as specified in CMC 14.27.030(3); and 
Staff Findings:  Amendments to repeal CMC 18.100 Property Specific Development Standards/Special Overlay 
Districts have not been proposed or subject to review by the City in the past three years.  
 
(7) Adequate public services could be made available to serve the full range of proposed uses in that zone. 
Staff Findings:  N/A. The proposed amendments will not change the zoning of any property in the City and will 
not create any increased demand for public services.  
 
Recommendation 
Recommended motion:  Move to recommend to the City Council that they approve the repeal of CMC Chapter 
18.100 Property Specific Development Standards/Special Overlay Districts.  
 
Alternative motion:  Move to continue the Planning Commission’s discussion and final recommendation to a 
future meeting date to allow staff to make recommended modifications for Planning Commission review.  
 

Planning Commission October 6, 2016 
Page40 of 50

Agenda Item 4



Planning Commission October 6, 2016 
Page41 of 50

Agenda Item 4



Planning Commission October 6, 2016 
Page42 of 50



Planning Commission October 6, 2016 
Page43 of 50

Agenda Item 4 Attachment



Planning Commission October 6, 2016 
Page44 of 50

Agenda Item 4 Attachment



Planning Commission October 6, 2016 
Page45 of 50

Agenda Item 4 Attachment



Planning Commission October 6, 2016 
Page46 of 50

Agenda Item 4 Attachment



Planning Commission October 6, 2016 
Page47 of 50

Agenda Item 4 Attachment



Planning Commission October 6, 2016 
Page48 of 50

Agenda Item 4 Attachment



Planning Commission October 6, 2016 
Page49 of 50

Agenda Item 4 Attachment



Planning Commission October 6, 2016 
Page50 of 50

Agenda Item 4 Attachment


	Planning Commission Agenda 10-6-16
	Planning Commission Minutes 090116
	PC Staff Memo Draft Interim Sign code Revisions CMC 18.55
	PC Staff memo on proposed amendments to CMC 16.10 and 14
	Attachment A_ Covington CMC 16_10 SEPA Rule Amendments and CMC 14. 30_14.45 2016_0908_anns edits
	PC Staff memo on proposed amendments to CMC 18.100
	Attachment A_for repeal of CMC18_100 SEPA16-04_Scan of signed DNS
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page



